
 

 

 

 

 

Board of Directors Meeting 

501 Comfort Place, Conference Room A, Mishawaka 

August 16, 2017 

7:30 a.m. 

 

BOARD BRIEFING BOOK 
Table of Contents 

 

                             

Agenda ...................................................................................2 

Minutes of 06/28/17 Board Meeting ......................................4 

President’s Report ..................................................................12 

 Average Daily Census Charts .......................................28 

 President’s Report Attachments....................................33 

Policies ...................................................................................57 

PAGE - 1



 

 

 

 

CHAPTER 

ONE 
 

AGENDA 
 

PAGE - 2



                                                
 

 
1-800-HOSPICE             cfhcare.org 

 

111 Sunnybrook Court 
South Bend, IN 46637 
(574) 243-3100 
Fax: (574) 243-3134 

112 S. Center St., Suite C 
Plymouth, IN 46563 
(574) 935-4511 
Fax: (574) 935-4589 

22579 Old US 20 East 
Elkhart, IN 46516 
(574) 264-3321 
Fax: (574) 264-5892 

Life Transition Center 
501 Comfort Place 
Mishawaka, IN 46545 
(574) 255-1064 
Fax: (574) 255-1452 

Administration & Foundation 
501 Comfort Place 
Mishawaka, IN 46545 
(574) 277-4100 
Fax: (574) 822-4876 

 

 

 

 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

Administrative and Foundation Offices 

501 Comfort Place, Room A, Mishawaka IN 

August 16, 2017 

7:30 a.m. 

 

A G E N D A 

 

1. Approval of June 28, 2017 Minutes (action) – Wendell Walsh (2 minutes) 

 

2. President's Report (information) - Mark Murray (14 minutes) 

 

3. Finance Committee (action)  – Lori Turner (8 minutes) 

a. June and July 2017 Financial Statements 

 

4. Policies (action) – Sue Morgan (5 minutes) 

 

5. Foundation Update (information) – Amy Kuhar Mauro  (10 minutes) 

 

6. Board Education – Hospice Foundation Update (information) – Mike Wargo (20 minutes) 

 

7. Chairman’s Report (information) – Wendell Walsh (2 minutes) 

 

 

Next meeting October 18, 2017 at 7:30 a.m. 

 

# # # 

 

 

 

PAGE - 3



 

 

 

 

CHAPTER 

TWO 
 

MINUTES 
 

PAGE - 4



Center for Hospice Care  

Board of Directors Meeting Minutes 

June 28, 2017 

 

Members Present: Ann Firth, Anna Milligan, Jesse Hsieh, Lori Turner, Mary Newbold, Suzie Weirick, Tim Portolese, 

Wendell Walsh 

Absent: Amy Kuhar Mauro, Carol Walker, Francis Ellert, Jennifer Ewing 

CHC Staff: Mark Murray, Craig Harrell, Dave Haley, Karl Holderman, Mike Wargo, Sue Morgan, Becky Kizer 

 

Topic Discussion Action 

1. Call to Order  The meeting was called to order at 7:30 a.m.  

2. Minutes  We did not have a quorum at the 04/19/17 CHC Board of Directors meeting, so today 

the Board needs to ratify the actions and recommendations taken at that meeting. The 

Board had approved the financial statements for the first quarter of 2017, the 2016 

Audit which was a clean audit, a report from the PAG on our Home Health program 

and recommended changes that were approved, and a review of revised policies.   

 A motion was made to ratify the actions and recommendations taken at the 04/19/17 

CHC Board meeting and accept the minutes of the 04/19/17 meeting as presented. 

The motion was accepted unanimously. 

 

 

 

 

 

L. Turner motioned 

T. Portolese seconded 

3. President’s 

Report 

 Census has been very strong and has not been below 400 since April 19
th

. Through 

yesterday June ADC is 405 and YTD 399, which is where we ended 2016. Our break 

even to meet budget is 383.  

 LaPorte Office – We still have not found space suitable for us. We had some 

communication issues with our realtor, but we are now back on track. It is important 

to have our office within the city limits of LaPorte for potential grant opportunities.  

 We have done so well in collecting on the backlog of Accounts Receivables that we 

were able to pay back $5MM of our line of credit loan. This was due to the efforts of 

our medical staff getting caught up and also hiring of additional medical staff. We are 

in very good shape now. The A/R number of days is now below the National Hospice 

Executive Roundtable (NHERT) benchmark.  

 We signed a contract with St. Joseph PACE to provide hospice services for their 

patients. They had signed a contract with a for-profit hospice based out of Texas 

when they opened. Dr. Quinn is the medical director of PACE. Jesse H. could follow 

 

 

PAGE - 5



Board of Directors Meeting – 06/28/17, page 2 

 

Topic Discussion Action 

up with him and ask whether they need to have a contract with the for-profit hospice. 

 We are working on a draft of a palliative care product line to present to hospitals for 

CHF and COPD patients to help avoid hospital readmissions. We have some 

impressive data from our HeartWize and BreatheEasy programs that we could share 

with them. We could get paid under Medicare B if a nurse practitioner makes a 

palliative care visit. We will be checking with NHERT to see if any of them have 

something they use for marketing their palliative care program that they could share 

with us. People still think of hospice as cancer. Out of 2,000 patients last year, half 

had COPD, CHF or Dementia / other neurological diagnoses. Over the past 12 years 

cancer has been shrinking as the percentage of people we care for. We have 

attempted to build relationships with cardiologists. When we developed our 

HeartWize program, we worked with a couple of cardiologist as champions for the 

program. Ideally, once we have a community-based palliative care program, we 

could continue to see patients that went home from the hospital under our home 

health license until they would need hospice care if they become eligible.  

 CHC has been under a Medicaid Integrity Audit (MIC) going back four or five years. 

They reviewed records on 13 patients and denied four. We appealed the four denials. 

Two were then approved but the other two denials were upheld. We will continue to 

appeal these denials. Additionally, CHC is one of 65 hospices chosen for an audit 

related to General Inpatient Level of Care (GIP). CMS hired 

StrategicHealthSolutions to do the audit. They reviewed 14 claims (11 patients) 

under GIP valued at $118,656. They denied three claims (2 patients) valued at 

$30,036. These were all technical denials saying we had missing signatures and/or 

untimely face-to-face visits. We are reviewing the records and will appeal if we find 

the missing information. Four of the ten NHERT members were also included in this 

audit and the contractor came up with virtually the same thing: requested 11-12 

patients, denied three to four claims.    

 We have hired a medical records coder in the Billing Department. With ICD-10 

diagnosis codes and increased scrutiny, we need to get it right up front before the 

claim is submitted.  

 Occupancy at both Hospice Houses is down, primarily due to the average length of 

stay being down. South Bend Hospice House had an 11% increase in patients served 

and Elkhart Hospice House was down 2%. With the increased scrutiny in GIP level 

of care, there are fewer GIP days being billed to Medicare. We met with 

PAGE - 6



Board of Directors Meeting – 06/28/17, page 3 

 

Topic Discussion Action 

representatives from the Indiana Hospice and Palliative Care Organization (IHPCO) 

and the Indiana Association for Home & Hospice Care on 06/26. One item discussed 

was the idea of using Hospice House for non-hospice patients for short term 

symptom management care to shorten hospital stays prior to the patient going home 

or to a facility. Hospice House would be able to meeting their symptom management 

needs at a much lower cost.  We believe managed care organizations would pay for 

this. We think hospitals would be interested in getting patients out faster since 

they’ve already been paid the DRG. We had approached the Indiana State 

Department of Health through IHPCO about making this happen administratively in 

the state  and they didn’t have a problem with it, but we don’t think they understood 

what we were talking about. IHPCO has also met with an Indiana Senator who is 

interested in adding this to an Indiana hospice legislative law. This could give us 

another reason to fill our beds at the new Hospice House. We likely drop the word 

“hospice” from both facilities in the future. It would take a licensure law change to 

allow patients who have not elected hospice to be treated in a licensed hospice 

inpatient unit. 

 The new Hospice House in Mishawaka is not an addition to Roseland. The seven 

beds in Roseland will move to Mishawaka, and we will add three, so we would then 

have a total of 12 beds in Mishawaka and seven in Elkhart. The Roseland facility will 

be repurposed for Milton Adult Day Services. The Alzheimer’s & Dementia Services 

of Northern Indiana is also interested in renting part of the building. We own the 

Roseland facility free and clear. 

 We have heard that 20% of everyone over the age of 65 who is in the hospital right 

now will die in six months or less. So one out of five patients in the hospital is 

technically hospice eligible today.  

 The NHERT met here June 11-13. This is a group of ten hospice CEO from across 

the country. They also brought their CFOs to this particular meeting. Guest speakers 

were from The Advisory Board on their new post-acute care tracking tool, and also 

Phil Newbold, President/CEO of Beacon Health System.  

 The Hospice Action Network (HAN) is developing a public policy campaign to 

elevate the hospice story in Washington, DC. Mark is one of eight people asked to 

participate in the interviewing and hiring of several Washington, DC based PR and 

Lobbying firms.  

 Active Day, a for-profit agency based in Pittsburgh, is opening an adult day service 

PAGE - 7



Board of Directors Meeting – 06/28/17, page 4 

 

Topic Discussion Action 

facility on Grape Road. They had tried to purchase MADS. Craig Harrell is working 

on MADS’ marketing materials and promoting their services.  

 The 24
th

 Annual Camp Evergreen was held June 2-4 and had 52 participants. The 

annual Volunteer Inservice Day was held 06/06 at Bethel College and 114 people 

attended. The “Journeys in Healing” art auction was held 06/14 and over 170 people 

attended. All of the art pieces were sold. CHC Night at Four Winds Field on 06/16 

had 118 people attend.  

 Global Partners in Care (GPIC) now appears on the financial statements. We are now 

successfully wiring money overseas. GPIC is an affiliate of the Hospice Foundation, 

which is IRS Type II supporting foundation for CHC.  

 Our professional liaisons made 673 visits in two months to referral sources. They are 

out there every day. We are trying to sell tools to make the job easier for our referral 

sources and build those relationships. Usually it is the staff person, not the doctor that 

makes the actual referral. The doctor just says the patient is appropriate for hospice, 

so we need to get to the decision makers.  

4. Finance 

Committee 

 April operating income was $1,829,647, interest and other income $40,422, 

beneficial interest in Foundation $151,677, total revenue $2,021,746, total expenses 

$1,601,506, net gain $420,240, net without beneficial interest in Foundation 

$268,563. YTD April operating income $7,081,172, interest and other income 

$161,477, beneficial interest in Foundation $693,886, total revenue $7,936,535, total 

expenses $6,303,082, net gain $1,633,453, net without beneficial interest in 

Foundation $939,567.  

 GPIC was added to the financial statements in May. May operating income 

$1,873,782, MADS revenue $41,740, interest and other income $1,402, beneficial 

interest in affiliate $288,230, total revenue $2,205,154, total expenses $1,607,108, 

net gain $598,046, net without beneficial interest $309,816. YTD operating income 

$8,954,953, MADS revenue $191,928, interest and other income $12,691, beneficial 

interest in affiliate $982,116, total revenue $10,141,688, total expenses $7,910,189, 

net gain $2,231,499, net without beneficial interest $1,249,383.  

 There was a lot of beneficial interest in Affiliate due to investments being up 

significantly. MADS has been pretty much on target with what we expected. Their 

ADC is 19 to 20 for the year, and we project an ADC of around 22. It has never 

intended to be a money maker. They are $2,700 in the hole. We expect to break even 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

PAGE - 8



Board of Directors Meeting – 06/28/17, page 5 

 

Topic Discussion Action 

by the end of the year.  

 A motion was made to accept the April and May 2017 financial statements as 

presented. The motion was accepted unanimously.  

 

S. Weirick motioned 

A. Firth seconded 

5. QI Committee  The minutes of the 05/23/17 QI Committee are meeting in the board packet. It is a 

well-run committee.  

 

6. Policies  The PPS/FAST Scale cards were developed by our clinical staff educator. It is a tool 

to help the nurses determine the level the patient is at the time of admission and at 

every recertification. It is kept on their name tag as a quick reference.  

 Sue M. highlighted the new and revised policies. The Discharge Criteria policy was 

revised to reflect a change by Medicare that we now have to give a 15 day notice 

when a patient is discharged from home health instead of five days. The Multi-Drug 

Resistant Organism policy was updated. We combined a number of Hospice House 

policies into one for Hospital to Hospice House Admission. Suicide Ideation was 

updated to reflect current practices. Someone will stay with the patient until he/she 

can be assessed.    

 A motion was made to approve all of the policies as presented. The motion was 

accepted unanimously.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

T. Portolese motioned 

M. Newbold seconded 

7. Foundation 

Update 

 Through the first 35 months of the Capital Campaign we have total cash, pledges, 

and documented commitments of $8MM. Some other dollars will be added to that 

related to the Give Local Day matching pool. CHC was the number one agency in the 

Community Foundation of St. Joseph County’s Give Local Day. We had about 220 

donors and raised $435,000 in support. The total net will be around $588,000 when 

the matching grants are added to that. We had one major gift from a prospective 

donor of $250,000 that was directed to us on Give Local. Subsequently the donor 

shared with us they will giving a $1MM gift to name Hospice House. We don’t have 

a signed agreement yet. We will also be looking at changing the name of the Elkhart 

Hospice House. Technically it is the Strefling Foundation. We will ask them if we 

can call it something other than Hospice House. We have a number of campaign 

initiatives we would like to be able to finish off fundraising for over the next couple 

years. 

 GPIC – We finally got all of the paperwork processed through the New York 

Secretary of State Office, so we could take over the PNC account and wire funds 

overseas. We have a new software program to help manage the data. We make Skype 

 

PAGE - 9



Board of Directors Meeting – 06/28/17, page 6 

 

Topic Discussion Action 

calls with the international partners. Our goal is to talk to every partner before the 

end of the year. We are working in 15 different countries. We are also working on 

Memorandums of Understanding with a number of palliative care organizations in 

different countries. Now that we have control of GPIC’s accounts, it can be reflected 

on the financial statements. The first official GPIC Board meeting will be held today. 

 Roberta Spencer traveled to Uganda in May and spent time working on the Road to 

Hope Camp, which is similar to Camp Evergreen. It is now in its third year and 53 of 

the 58 Road to Hope children attended. A grad student from the Eck Institute for 

Global Health at the University of Notre Dame is in Uganda working on the mHealth 

initiative so an informed decision can be made on where to focus efforts for palliative 

care. Road to Hope won a couple more documentary awards. It has won 33 so far, 

plus it has been officially selected for 70 international film festivals. This raises 

awareness about our work in Uganda and is one reason why we are seeing an 

increase in support for children in the program. 

 Mishawaka Campus – We now have firm pricing from DJ Construction for the 

clinical staff building and Helman-Sechrist has completed design for Hospice House. 

We are in the process of creating a construction document and get that bid out as 

well. Originally we had anticipated a cost of $7.2MM, but due to the increase in 

construction in the community since planning began, costs have increased annually 

are it will be about $9MM. We would like to put shovel in the ground next spring.  

8. Board 

Education 

 Craig Harrell, Director of Marketing and Access, gave an update on CHC’s social 

media and digital marketing. This allows us to bring the proper message in front of 

the right people at the proper time and measure our return on investment. We now 

have three years’ worth of data for comparison. Our name usually shows up first on 

search engines. Our conversion rate from digital marketing to a phone call is 18.05%, 

which is well above the expectation benchmark of at least 2%. Craig H. and Peter 

Ashley, Director of Communications and Annual Giving at Hospice Foundation, 

work together on promoting events between CHC and the Hospice Foundation. 

Barbara King, Marketing & Access Assistant, is doing stories on employees to post 

on our social media, which has become very popular. We will start doing the same 

with our volunteers.  

 We will still do traditional marketing on billboards and print media, but just not to 

the extent we had. There is still a need for that. We are targeting women age 35 and 

above, because they comprise most of the caregivers. We want our name to be top of 

 

PAGE - 10



Board of Directors Meeting – 06/28/17, page 7 

 

Topic Discussion Action 

mind. We schedule when our TV spots air so it hits all of our service area. Craig is in 

the process of verifying this schedule, because it was set up before he started at CHC.  

Adjournment  The meeting adjourned at 8:35 a.m. Next meeting 08/16 

 

Prepared by Becky Kizer for approval by the Board of Directors on 08/16/17. 

 

 

________________________________________________           _____________________________________________ 

Wendell Walsh, Chair           Becky Kizer, Recording Secretary 

 

PAGE - 11



 

 

 

 

CHAPTER 

THREE 
 

PRESIDENT’S 

REPORT 
 

PAGE - 12



Center for Hospice Care 

Hospice Foundation 

Milton Adult Day Services 

Global Partners in Care 

 

President / CEO Report 

August 16, 2017 
(Report posted to Secure Board Website on August 10, 2017) 

 

This meeting takes place in Conference Room A at the Mishawaka Campus at 7:30 AM. 

 This report includes event information from June 29 – August 16, 2017. 

The Hospice Foundation Board meeting follows in the same room. 

 

CENSUS 

 

Maintaining census has been problematic.  YTD referrals at 7/31/17 were 3% below prior year.  

However, the conversion rate is 73% compared to 69% a year ago.  July’s new admissions totaled 

122 compared to June’s 131 (we averaged149 per month in the first half of 2017).  During the last 

four days in July, 40 patients died, discharged or revoked within 96 hours.  This will take time to 

rebuild and recover.  Of the 122 new admissions in July, 21% were on census four days or less, 

18% were 48 hours or less, and five less than 24 hours.  44% of all deaths in July were in seven 

days or less following admission.  Every patient who died on Saturday August 5 had been admitted 

Friday August 4th.  The Elkhart Hospice House (HH) was closed from 8/4 – 8/7 because of no 

patients, while the South Bend HH was full 8/4 – 8/10 with patients having to be admitted in local 

hospitals while waiting for SB HH beds to open.  St. Joseph County families flatly refuse to drive 

“all the way to Elkhart” where there are empty beds for loved ones.  Census on 8/8 was the lowest 

since March of 2014.  Staffing levels are continually evaluated along with admission efficiencies. 

 

July 2017 Current 

Month 

Year to Date Prior 

Year to Date 

YTD 

Change 

     

Patients Served 478 1,403 1,385 18 

Original Admissions 122 1,017 1,000 17 

ADC Hospice 347.77 363.04 376.53 (13.49) 

ADC Home Health 34.19 31.09 20.89 10.20 

ADC CHC Total 381.96 394.13 397.42 (3.29) 

 

June 2017 Current 

Month 

Year to Date Prior 

Year to Date 

YTD 

Change 

     

Patients Served 502 1,281 1,242 39 

Original Admissions 131 895 857 38 

ADC Hospice 367.77 365.66 375.15 (9.49) 

ADC Home Health 35.30 30.56 21.09 9.47 

ADC CHC Total 403.07 396.22 396.24 (0.02) 

PAGE - 13



08/16/17 President’s Report – page 2 

  

Monthly Average Daily Census by Office and Hospice Houses 

 

 2017 2017 2017 2017 2017 2017 2017 2017 2017 2016 2016 2016 
 Jan Feb Mar Apr May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec  

 

S.B.: 224 227 223 227 228 226 212   217 219 220 

 

Ply: 69 67 67 72 72 69 66   76 79 78 

 

Elk: 87 86 87 95 97 99 94   94 99 96 

 

SBH: 5 6 6 5 4 5 6   4 5 6 

 

EKH: 4 3 4 4 4 4 4   3 2 4 

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

Total: 390 388 387 402 406 403 382   394 405 404 

 

 

HOSPICE HOUSES 

 

July 2017 Current 

Month 

Year to Date Prior 

Year to Date 

YTD 

Change 

SB House Pts Served 42 224 205 19 

SB House ALOS 4.33 4.99 5.50 (0.51) 

SB House Occupancy 83.87% 75.27% 75.59% -0.32% 

     

Elk House Pts Served 32 186 190 (4) 

Elk House ALOS 3.91 4.51 5.30 (0.79) 

Elk House Occupancy 57.60% 56.54% 67.54% -11.00% 

 

 

June 2017 Current 

Month 

Year to Date Prior 

Year to Date 

YTD 

Change 

SB House Pts Served 30 189 181 8 

SB House ALOS 4.77 4.95 5.38 (0.43) 

SB House Occupancy 68.10% 73.80% 76.37% -2.57% 

     

Elk House Pts Served 34 160 162 (2) 

Elk House ALOS 3.74 4.46 5.27 (0.81) 

Elk House Occupancy 60.48% 56.35% 66.95% -10.60% 

 

 

 

 

 

PAGE - 14



08/16/17 President’s Report – page 3 

  

PATIENTS IN FACILITIES 

 

Of the 478 patients served in July, 127 resided in facilities.  Of the 502 patients served in June, 161 

resided in facilities.  The average daily census of patients in skilled nursing homes, assisted living 

facilities, and group homes during July was 127; June was 132 and July YTD was 131. 

 

 

FINANCES 

 

Karl Holderman, CFO, reports the July 2017 Financials will be posted to the Board website on 

Friday morning, August 11th following Finance Committee approval.  For information purposes, 

the unapproved June 2017 financials are presented below. 

 

June 2017 Financial Information 
 

Center for Hospice Care (1)      

(Numbers below include CHC’s beneficial interest in the Hospice Foundation including its loss / gain) 

June Overall Revenue  $        2,167,742   Year to Date Overall Revenue  $          12,309,425  

June Total Expense  $        1,729,547   Year to Date Total Expense  $            9,639,737  

June Net Gain  $           438,195   Year to Date Net Gain  $            2,669,668 

      

Hospice Foundation (without 

GPIC) 

     

June Development Income  $           434,584   Year to Date Development Income  $               941,842 

June Invest Gains (Loss)  $           118,523   Year to Date Investment Gains (Loss)  $            1,591,681 

June Overall revenue  $           596,333   Year to Date Overall Revenue   $            2,711,548  

Total June Expenses  $           228,726   Total Year to Date Expenses  $            1,361,826  

June Overall Net  $           367,607            Year to Date Overall Net  $            1,349,722  

      

Global Partners in Care      

June Partnership Grants  $             34,929   Year to Date Partnership Grants  $                 84,894 

June Overall Revenue  $             35,405   Year to Date Overall Revenue   $               213,108  

Total June Expenses  $             35,233   Total Year to Date Expenses   $                 83,887               

June Overall Net  $                  172            Year to Date Overall Net   $               129,220  

      

Combined (2)      

June Overall Revenue  $        2,431,701   Year to Date Overall Revenue $          13,755,139  

June Overall Net Gain  $           438,195   Year to Date Overall Net Gain  $            2,669,688  

(1) Center for Hospice Care revenue and net gain figures (current month & YTD) reflect net gain posted by Hospice Foundation. 

(2) Combined figures (current month & YTD) reflect elimination of net gain posted by Hospice Foundation. 

 

At the end of June 2017, CHC’s YTD operating income was $10,711,308 up $$42,279 from June 

2016.  The YTD June 2017 overall combined net gain for CHC / HF / GPIC was $2,669,668 up 

122% from June 2016.  At 6/30/17, CHC’s YTD Net without the beneficial interest in the HF was 

$1,319,794 representing a nearly 4% increase from same time last year.  The combined YTD net at 

6/30/17 without counting investment gains/losses was $319,672 representing an increase of 43% 

PAGE - 15



08/16/17 President’s Report – page 4 

  

from YTD same time prior year.  At the end of June 2017, the Hospice Foundation’s Intermediate 

Investments totaled $4,500,617.  Long Term Investments totaled $19,012,862.  CHC’s assets on 

June 30, 2016, including its beneficial interest in the Hospice Foundation, totaled nearly $47MM.  

At the end of June 2017 HF’s assets alone totaled nearly $39.4MM and debt related to the low 

interest line of credit associated with the Mishawaka Campus project totaled $896,611.  All 

organizations had combined assets on June 30, 2017 of just over $48MM. 

 

 

CHC VP/COO UPDATE 

 

Dave Haley, CHC VP/COO, reports… 

 

We have been able to develop a third option for the delivery of hospice patient medications (for 

refills only) from our medication supplier, DeliverCareRx.  Starting July 24, we have been able to 

order a three-day delivery service (versus a two-day delivery) on refills.  When our nurses order this 

delivery method for refill medications, we save 40% on the cost of delivery.  This will reduce the 

delivery cost of these refills from $10.00 per delivery to $5.95 per delivery. 

 

Lucette Higgins, Director Victim / Witness Services of the St. Joseph County Prosecutor’s Office 

called recently to let us know she was referring a family involved in a traumatic death to our 

bereavement services department.  During the conversation, she commented how thankful and 

grateful she is to have our services to share with families that come through her program.  She 

indicated having bereavement services for traumatic bereavement is so important to the families she 

serves.  She also appreciates that the service is free, since some of the families she refers would not 

be able to utilize services if there was a charge. 

 

Carrie Healy, MSW, began work as our new Social Work Coordinator on July 17. 

 

George Drake, MD, has started working providing patient care two days a week.  He is board 

certified in hospice and palliative medicine. 

 

Our medical staff has been issued iPads, providing them greater mobility in the field. 

 

We continue working on locating space to open a staff office in La Porte, Indiana.   

 

We were recently notified by the very new CEO of LaPorte Hospital that they did not wish to 

contract with us now for the provision of General Inpatient Services.  Our plan now is to approach 

Porter Regional Hospital in Valparaiso for these services.  Both hospitals are owned by CHS, a 

publicly traded for-profit company (NASDAQ: CYH) whose affiliates own, operate or lease 137 

hospitals in 21 states with approximately 22,000 licensed beds.  They are currently $15 billion in 

debt.  While we were originally told by the interim CEO at LaPorte that contract approval could 

take months, such an Agreement would be good upon approval at any CHS hospital.  

 

We continue to evolve our planning on several community palliative care product lines.  We are 

devising a 30-day readmission reduction program to market to area hospitals.  This would save the 

hospitals money and provide an extra revenue stream to CHC.  The idea is to reduce emergency 

room visits and hospital readmissions within 30 days of discharge for patients with congestive heart 

failure and chronic obstructive lung disease. 

PAGE - 16



08/16/17 President’s Report – page 5 

  

We have contracted with the Saint Joseph PACE program to become one of their hospice providers 

and at press time one of our patients has elected PACE and we are working out details. 

 

We will participate in a Community Healthcare Disaster Drill which is scheduled to occur on 

September 20.  The mock disaster will be a plane crash at the South Bend airport.  The new CMS 

Emergency Preparedness for Medicare and Medicaid Participating Providers and Suppliers are in 

effect on November 16, 2017 and will be reviewed by both our hospice and home health surveyors.  

Participation in community disaster preparedness is required. 

 

 

DIRECTOR OF NURSING UPDATE 
 

Sue Morgan, DON, reports…  

 

CHC RNs were updated on the medication reviews and electronic profiling.  Previously the nurse 

would have to complete a profile independently.  Within the Cerner electronic medical record 

medications appear in the Hospice Nursing visit section.  Reviews are conducted at admission, 

during each 14-day care plan review, at the comprehensive assessment, and during each 

recertification for hospice services. 

 

There are instances when a patient has had an assessment completed for an admission, but the 

family and/or patient isn’t ready for hospice services.  Then a call is placed to triage during the 

night with a family request for immediate assistance for symptom management or the patient is 

actively dying.  The Admissions Department has created a Resource Manual for the emergency visit 

nurse to utilize as a guideline to get the patient admitted and take care of the symptom needs.  RNs 

were educated on the procedure in August.  There have been three emergency admissions utilizing 

this process with no issues identified by meeting the patient/family need for Hospice Services.  

 

The Indiana State Department of Health survey for hospice state licensure and Medicare 

certification is anticipated in the fall of 2017.  Mock surveys continue to be completed at all three 

care offices.  The focus is to educate the staff and review the national top deficiencies in preparation 

of the actual survey. 

 

A revised orientation plan will begin in August for the Certified Nursing Assistants.  The days in 

orientation will expand from two days to five days to allow for more opportunity for them to be 

competent in all areas prior to having a case load of patients independently. 

 

 

HOSPICE FOUNDATION VP / COO UPDATE 

 

Mike Wargo, VP/COO, for our separate 501(c)3 organization, Hospice Foundation (HF), presents 

this update for informational purposes to the CHC Board… 

 

Fund Raising Comparative Summary 

 

Through July 2017, the Development Department recorded the following calendar year cash gifts as 

compared with the same period during the previous seven years:   

 

PAGE - 17



08/16/17 President’s Report – page 6 

  

 
Year to Date Total Revenue (Cumulative) 

  

 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 

January 64,964.45 32,655.69 36,775.87 83,619.96 51,685.37 82,400.05 65,460.71 46,552.99 

February 108,025.76 64,530.43 88,893.51 166,563.17 109,724.36 150,006.82 101,643.17 199,939.17 

March 231,949.73 165,468.92 194,345.35 264,625.29 176,641,04 257,463.89 178,212.01 282,326.61 

April 354,644.69 269,676.53 319,818.81 395,299.97 356,772.11 419,610.76 341,637.10 431,871.55 

May 389,785.41 332,141.44 416,792.85 446,125.49 427,057.81 635,004.26 579,888.08 574,854.27 

June 477,029.89 427,098.62 513,432.22 534,757.61 592,962.68 794,780.62 710,175.32 1,066,118.11 

July 532,913.52 487,325.01 579,801.36 604,696.88 679,253.96 956,351.88 1,072,579.84 1,277,609.56 

August 585,168.77 626,466.72 643,819.01 783,993.15 757,627.43 1,042,958.42 1,205,050.76  

September 671,103.04 724,782.28 736,557.59 864,352.82 935,826.45 1,267,659.12 1,297.009.78  

October 992,743.37 1,026,728.58 846,979.95 922,261.84 1,332,007.18 1,321,352.39 1,421,110.26  

November 1,043,750.46 1,091,575.65 895,164.28 969,395.17 1,376,246.01 1,469,386.01 1,494,702.09  

December 1,178,938.91 1,275,402.38 1,027,116.05 1,185,322.83 1,665,645.96 1,757,042.51 2,018,630.54  

 
Year to Date Monthly Revenue 

(less major campaigns, bequests and significant one-time major gifts) 

 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 

January 52,442.49 32,110.69 32,309.58 83,380.18 51,685.37 57,971.60 52,156.98 31,552.99 

February 41,364.37 30,644.74 43,783.64 82,943.21 43,038.99 67,572.77 36,182.46 35,125.58 

March 65,886.51 99,796.42 102,351.84 98,212.12 66,916.68 107,457.07 73,667.84 79,387.44 

April 104,544.96 97,332.61 123,998.46 130,674.68 180,156.07 162,146.87 163,425.09 149,569.94 

May 33,768.72 51,753.98 90,909.04 40,825.52 100,285.70 160,178.34 93,318.98 142,982.72 

June 74,084.48 90,718.18 92,036.89 65,815.51 97,258.66 159,776.36 127,315.24 146,200.17 

July 55,278.63 53,536.39 62,069.43 69,939.27 38,243.88 93,586.27 52,394.52 61,505.45 

August 51,240.25 83,202.86 64,017.65 92,732.69 79,015.87 86,606.54 97,470.92  

September 85,629.27 94,000.56 92,808.58 80,335.67 84,011.71 99,931.45 92,459.02  

October 66,061.97 47,779.09 65,904.80 56,439.02 55,208.68 53,693.27 71,323.54  

November  49,247.09 48,284.08 46,674.33 47,133.33 44,238.83 46,870.62 66,490.16  

December 115,188.45 133,617.73 111,236.77 130,277.99 193,065.45  161,519.80 138,328.11  

Total 794,737.19 862,777.33 928,101.01 978,709.19 1,033,125.99 1,257,310.96 1,064,532.86  

 

Cornerstones for Living: The Crossroads Campaign 

 

Campaign-related work in June and July 2017 included meetings with donors and prospective 

donors as we progress through the early stages of the public phase of our comprehensive campaign.  

Other activity included follow up with volunteers and employees expressing interest in participating 

in the Crossroads Campaign because of presentations made to both groups earlier in the year.  

Through 37 months of our 5-year campaign (7/1/14 thru 7/31/17) total cash, pledges and 

documented bequests total $8,750,456.  We await documentation for the remaining $750,000 of a 

$1 Million gift pledged for the Hospice House; inclusion of the $750,000 verbal commitment 

increases the total to $9,500,456. 

 

Members of the St. Joe Valley Street Rods, a local group of vintage car/hot rod enthusiasts, visited 

Center for Hospice Care with their street rods on the afternoon of July 28 and presented us with a 

check for $15,000.  The group sells Barnaby’s Pizza coupons as a CHC fundraiser.  This effort 

began in 2010.  Since making their first gift in 2005, the St. Joe Valley Street Rods have donated 

over $101,000 to CHC.  We are determining ways to acknowledge the generous giving of the Street 

Rods and we are seeking their input.  Funding from last year assisted us in meeting the Asante 

PAGE - 18



08/16/17 President’s Report – page 7 

  

Foundation match, and the group requested that their 2017 gift be used toward the $1 Million 

Dwyer Trust matching grant to permanently endow the Vera Z. Dwyer Fellowship in Hospice and 

Palliative Medicine. 

 

We are continuing to explore ways to facilitate campaign gifts from prospective Elkhart donors and 

cultivate donation and grant opportunities in La Porte as CHC works toward establishing a physical 

presence there. 

 

Planned Giving 

 

A planned giving prospect met with us in July.  We are working on documenting a $75,000 to 

$100,000 gift.  The prospective donor came to tour the Mishawaka Campus and learn more about 

CHC, and they are now focusing on which CHC programs to support through their estate gift.  

 

Annual Giving 

 

Response to the annual Friends of Hospice campaign, which kicked off in May, has been consistent 

with giving during this same time in previous years. 

 

Special Events & Projects 

 

2017 continues to be an active year for events.  We held our inaugural Journeys in Healing gallery 

showing/silent auction to support the After Images art counseling program on June 14.  We had 

approximately 175 people in attendance, making it our largest in-house event to date.  Feedback 

from attendees was extremely positive and gross proceeds from the event were nearly $6,700. 

 

The 19th Annual NAIFA Golf Tournament, a 3rd Party event, was held on our behalf at Knollwood 

Country Club on August 2, where we were presented with a $2,445 check.  

 

We have several upcoming events, including the Heroes for Hospice Fun Run & Walk (8/12), Bike 

Michiana for Hospice (9/17), Okuyamba Fest (10/12), Veteran’s Dedication event (10/26). 

 

Our two event series sponsorships in Elkhart continue to raise brand awareness of Center for 

Hospice Care.  Featuring classic cars and live music, “Drive-in Fridays” at Ruthmere Museum will 

take place the last Fridays in August and September.  “Groovin’ in the Gardens,” a summer concert 

series that runs for ten consecutive Thursday evenings at Wellfield Botanical Gardens, continues 

through the end of August. 

 

On June 28th Tom’s Car Care Center at Bendix and Sugar Maple Drive in South Bend held a Lube-

a-Thon to benefit Center for Hospice Care, which raised a total of $3,698.  Tom’s first held this 

benefit for us in 1998 and continued to do so annually through 2007. After taking nearly a decade 

off, they resurrected the event in 2016.  Since its inception, this 3rd Party event has raised a total of 

$62,927.37 for our organization.   

 

Palliative Care Association of Uganda (PCAU) 

 

PCAU will once again host its Biennial Conference in August.  This edition of the conference is 

being jointly presented by the United Cancer Institute and PCAU and will be held August 23-25 in 

PAGE - 19



08/16/17 President’s Report – page 8 

  

Kampala.  Once again, CHC is a sponsor of the event, which is expected to bring together more 

than 600 international participants from Africa and other countries around the world.  Center for 

Hospice Care employees Holly Farmer (Bereavement Coordinator) and Kristiana Donahue 

(Volunteer Recruitment Coordinator) have been invited to present, based on the abstracts they 

submitted to the conference’s scientific committee.  Holly will be part of a workshop on Friday, 

August 25
th

 called “Working with Children as Patients and Care Givers.”  Other workshop 

presenters include Prof. Julia Downing and Ben Ikara of the Uganda Child Cancer Foundation.  

Kristiana’s presentation, “More Than a Heart: The Importance of an Effective Volunteer Training 

Program,” will be part of the Capacity Building break-out session on Thursday, August 24th.  Holly 

and Kristiana will be part of a larger CHC/HF/GPIC contingency, which includes Mike Wargo, 

Cyndy Searfoss and Denis Kidde, all of whom will also be attending and participating in the 

conference.  Mike, Cyndy, Denis and Rose Kiwanuka, PCAU National Coordinator, will present a 

workshop entitled “Collaborations Enhancing Service Provision.”  The group’s itinerary also 

includes meetings and working sessions with PCAU staff, meetings with GPIC and PCAU 

stakeholders, visits to Road to Hope children, as well as other staff exchange activities.  

Additionally, members of the team will be engaged in meetings with many organizations with 

whom we have various relationships, including: Catholic Relief Services, Feed the Hungry, Mulago 

Hospital School of Nursing, Congregation of the Holy Cross, Hospice Africa Uganda, Uganda 

Martyrs University, Ugandan Ministry of Health, and the African Palliative Care Association 

(APCA).  

 

Lily Ramos, a graduate student at the Eck Institute for Global Health at Notre Dame, is completing 

her thesis on the PCAU mHealth initiative.  Lily is both a Uganda native and an RN.  Her project 

was the enhancement of the quality of the data being captured by the facilities that are currently part 

of the mHealth initiative.  Now in its third year, this initiative represents the collaborative efforts of 

PCAU, CHC/HF, the Eck Institute, and Uganda Martyrs University to establish palliative care data 

collection and surveillance throughout the country. Lacey Ahern, associate director of the Eck 

Institute, will be in Uganda during the PCAU Conference and will join key PCAU staff and HF 

team members for meetings to review progress and plans for future scale-up. 

 

Road to Hope Program/Documentary 

 

Some of the work Holly and Cyndy will be undertaking at PCAU’s office will include organizing 

and auditing Road to Hope files related to the 57 children currently enrolled in the program.  This is 

due in part to the loss of the Road to Hope Program Coordinator who unexpectedly resigned at the 

beginning of the summer.  PCAU has posted this position; the duties associated with it are currently 

being covered by other PCAU staff. 

 

Once these files are audited and the team returns to the US, we will meet with Tom Marantette, 

Digital ND Lead Architect at the University of Notre Dame’s Office of Information Technologies, 

to discuss the feasibility of developing a mobile application to capture information about Road to 

Hope students gathered during field visits.  The vision for this process is to dovetail this app with 

the mHealth app discussed previously.  Trained community volunteers could be equipped with the 

same mobile phone used for mHealth and send information about the children they have referred to 

the program to PCAU offices on a regular basis.  This monitoring would be performed in addition 

to scheduled periodic visits by the Road to Hope Program Coordinator, once a replacement has been 

hired.  

 

PAGE - 20



08/16/17 President’s Report – page 9 

  

The Road to Hope film was named an official selection at the recent Real Time International Film 

Festival held 6/24 to 7/1 in Lagos, Nigeria. To date, Road to Hope has won 33 awards and has been 

an official selection and/or nominee in 71 film festival and award competition categories around the 

world. 

 

Education 

 

The Hospice Foundation hosted a three-part series of webinars in June, July and August for 

counselors, social workers and others who work with those who are grieving.  Attendees, who 

included counselors/social workers from a variety of local school districts and other organizations, 

had the opportunity to receive professional education credits for their attendance.  We also held 

additional screenings of the PBS FRONTLINE documentary, Being Mortal, in June.  The first, on 

June 6th, featured a breakfast buffet and a group discussion.  The second screening was held on 

June 29
th

 and was targeted to medical professionals and was attended by Jason Marker, MD, who is 

the Clinic Director with the Memorial Hospital Family Medicine Residency Program, as well as a 

provider in Bremen.  Notably, he referred our first-ever “palliative care” patient in the late 1990s.  

He has offered to serve as a liaison for a community screening this fall in Bremen, as well as 

promoting our hospice and palliative care rotation to Memorial family medicine residents.  

 

The next session of “Everything You Wanted to Know About Palliative Care But Were Afraid to 

Ask” will begin in September at the Forever Learning Institute. This five-session class covers 

hospice, palliative care, and end-of-life care planning.   

 

Mishawaka Campus 

 

We completed the acquisition of the former Johnathan Smith property at 209 N. Cedar Street and 

have entered into a Buy & Sell Agreement with the City of Mishawaka.  Under terms of the 

agreement, the City will demolish the house, clean-up the site, remove the trees and overhanging 

brush along the river bank, remove the temporary Riverwalk connection that currently extends 

across our property to Madison Street, expand our parking lot at the Center for Palliative Care and 

extend the Riverwalk directly to the Cedar Street Bridge.  We will be receiving significantly more 

in value from the City of Mishawaka than the “$95,000 loss” pointed out by the unfortunate article 

in the South Bend Tribune on August 4th.  Obviously, the City did not necessarily want this 

publicized and it was not our place to point this out to the media.  ABC 57 news ran a much more 

reasonable piece on the same story on August 8
th

. 

 

Work continues planning for the new Clinical Staff Building and Hospice House.  Mike is now in 

ongoing conversations with Helman Sechrist Architecture (architect), Jones Petrie Rafinski 

(engineer), DJ Construction (builder) and Office Interiors (interior designer) to prepare for a 

ground-breaking in 2018, hopefully in the spring. 

 

 

COMMUNICATIONS, MARKETING, VOLUNTEERS AND ACCESS 

 

Craig Harrell, Director of Marketing and Access, reports on marketing and access activities for June 

and July… 

 

 

PAGE - 21



08/16/17 President’s Report – page 10 

  

Referral, Professional, & Community Outreach 

 

Our Professional Liaisons continue to contact doctor’s offices, clinics, hospitals, group homes and 

extended care facilities to build relationships and generate referrals.  In June and July our three 

Liaisons completed 781 visits to current and potential referral sources within our service area.  All 

Professional Liaisons recently completed Pre-Assessment (PA) Training.  Now, if they are calling 

on a referral source and they ask, “Do you have somebody today who would benefit from our 

services?” they will be able to take the information and begin the process immediately rather than 

having the Intake Department schedule it later.  It will also help when we have difficulty reaching 

some of the more remote parts of our service area.  If they are in the vicinity, they can easily help.  

This should increase efficiency while reducing response times. 

 

We’ve also hired two new Admission Representatives, one full-time for weekdays and one for the 

weekends.  The full-time weekly is filling a position recently vacated due to personal reasons.  The 

weekend power position is one that’s been vacant over recent months.  Other staff has been helping 

in the interim.  

 

Char Yutzy, RN for CHC and Craig attended The Hospice Action Network’s Advocacy Intensive in 

Washington, D.C. July 17-18.  This event allowed us an opportunity to speak directly to our 

representatives concerning issues and policies affecting the hospice industry and to present our 

personal stories behind those issues.  More than 230 hospice advocates - physicians, nurses, social 

workers, chaplains, counselors, home health aides and volunteers – went to Capitol Hill to meet 

with their Members of Congress to support the Patient Choice and Quality Care Act of 2017 and the 

Rural Access to Hospice Act.  The idea is that hospices will send the actual people who do the work 

to tell the hospice story.  Char had a compelling and personal story to tell in DC as her mother died 

just a few months ago under CHC hospice care.  CHC representatives met with Congressmen and 

Senators from Indiana to gain their support of bills that would allow hospice to be presented as an 

option earlier in an illness and make hospice more accessible for individuals in rural areas.  We’re 

proud to say that after our meeting, Congressman Andre Carson (7th District) signed on to H.R. 

2797 – The Patient Choice and Quality Care Act. 

 

Volunteer Department 

 

Tara Minix, the part-time Volunteer Coordinator for our Plymouth location, has accepted a full-time 

position that will extend her responsibilities to the future LaPorte location and will include 

recruitment and maintaining the volunteer base in LaPorte and Porter counties.  She was also cross-

trained to do PA’s along with the Professional Liaisons. 

 

Volunteer Training & Recruitment 

 

Kristiana Donahue interviewed 12 new volunteer candidates and had 35 new inquiries in June and 

July.  The bulk of the inquiries continue to be from South Bend (29) while five were from Elkhart 

and one from Plymouth.  She also completed training six new volunteers during that same time.  As 

mentioned previously, Kristiana has been chosen to present “The Importance of an Effective 

Volunteer Training Program” at this year’s Palliative Care Association of Uganda (PCAU) at the 

Uganda Cancer Institute (UCI) at the Speke Resort Hotel in Munyonyo, Kampala, Uganda on 

August 24 & 25, 2017. 

 

PAGE - 22



08/16/17 President’s Report – page 11 

  

Access 

 

For the months of June & July, the Referral Specialists received 901 and 628 incoming phone calls 

to the Admissions Department, respectively.  Yes, this is a 30% drop month over month which 

could partially explain our census dip in July.  We typically run in the 245-285 range for a ten-day 

period.  The last period of June was unusually high (353) while the middle of July was unusually 

low (145), which accentuates the difference.  We continue to use this data to fine tune scheduling of 

staff, especially for weekends.  Over the past few months we’ve also experienced changes in staff.  

These changes have included a new Admissions Coordinator (the previous transferred internally to 

Assistant Director of Nursing), creation of an Admissions Team Leader position (to replace Intake 

Coordinator) and a new Scheduling Specialist in addition to the Admission Representatives 

previously mentioned.  Once again, these changes have positioned us to improve our response time 

and increase efficiency. 

 

Website 

 

During the months of June and July, CHC’s website hosted 6,062 users, of which 73% were new 

users.  Federated Digital Solutions (FDS) generated 2,319 new users through their use of Audience 

Targeting.  This allows our ads to appear to people in need of our services at the proper time and in 

turn to our website to learn more about our services. 

 

Social Media 

 

Facebook (Center4Hospice) 

 

Center for Hospice Care continues to use Facebook to communicate information and events and 

will soon surpass 3,500 followers. Some of the events featured in June and July included: 

• Gardens of Remembrance & Renewal Dedication 

• Groovin’ in the Gardens 

• Journeys in Healing Art Auction 

• Ruthmere Drive-In Fridays 

• Volunteer Open House in Mishawaka 

• Walk Michiana for Hospice 

• Bike Michiana for Hospice 

• 19th Annual NAIFA Joseph E Smith Memorial Golf Outing benefiting CHC 

• Camp Evergreen Youth Camp 

• Hospice Action Network Advocacy Intensive 

• Lube-A-Thon 

• St. Joe Valley Street Rods check presentation 

 

Both Center for Hospice Care and The Hospice Foundation will begin using video to educate the 

community about services and events. An Instagram account has been added in addition to the 

current Facebook, Twitter, LinkedIn & YouTube accounts.  Facebook posts in June and July 

reached a total of 69,214 Facebook members.  Our two most popular posts occurred in June with the 

most featuring the fact that we’re local and our employees are friends and neighbors and how we 

are part of the community.  The second most popular featured Camp Evergreen.  Both highlight the 

uniqueness of CHC. 

 

PAGE - 23



08/16/17 President’s Report – page 12 

  

Digital Overview 

 

The following digital report represents activity from June 1 – July 31. The digital campaign 

generated 153 calls for this period. Google industry benchmarks show an average click-through rate 

in the Health & Medical field of 1.79%. In June - July we were at 10.02%. 

 

 
 

 

POLICIES ON THE AGENDA FOR APPROVAL 

 

There are two new clinical policies on the agenda for your approval.  One deals with patient 

admissions to Hospice House from various locations.  The intent is to provide instruction and 

clarification for how to approach Hospice House admissions that are new to CHC, transferring from 

an extended care facility, and current CHC patients transferring from their own home.  There are 

subtle differences within each scenario and we believed it was time to put these into policy form to 

insure optimum patient care and efficiency.  The other new policy concerns “Medication 

Administration in Hospice House.”  While this is a new policy, it replaces the former policy 

“Managing Drugs & Biologicals in Hospice House.” 

 

 

PAGE - 24



08/16/17 President’s Report – page 13 

  

CMS FINALIZES UPDATES TO THE WAGE INDEX AND PAYMENT RATES FOR THE 

MEDICARE HOSPICE BENEFIT AND HOSPICE QUALITY REPORTING 

REQUIREMENTS FOR FY 2018 

 

On August 1, 2017, the Centers for Medicare & Medicaid Services (CMS) issued a final rule (CMS-

1675-F) that updates fiscal year (FY) 2018 Medicare payment rates and the wage index for hospices 

serving Medicare beneficiaries.  It also updates the hospice quality reporting requirements.  This 

final rule will update the hospice wage index, payment rates, and cap amount for fiscal year 2018.  

It also makes changes to the Hospice Quality Reporting Program (HQRP).  CMS will begin public 

reporting hospice quality reporting program (HQRP) data via a Hospice Compare Site in August 

2017 to help customers make informed choices.  While HQRP includes both the Hospice Item Set 

(HIS) and Hospice CAHPS® (Consumer Assessment of Healthcare Providers and Systems) Survey 

data, this new website will initially display only HIS data.  The public display of the Hospice 

CAHPS® Survey data will be added in winter 2018.  In this final rule, CMS has also finalized 

policies and procedures associated with the public reporting of the quality measures used in the 

Hospice Program, including release of the aggregate quality data file and the Provider Preview 

Reports.  The final rule went on display on August 1 at the Federal Register’s Public Inspection 

Desk and will be available under “Special Filings,” at 

http://www.federalregister.gov/inspection.aspx. 

 

 

CHC SEES A BIG WIN IN NEW MEDICARE HOSPICE RATES EFFECTIVE OCTOBER 

1, 2017 FOR FEDERAL FISCAL YEAR 2018 THANKS TO AN INCREASE IN THE WAGE 

INDEX MULTIPLIER 

 

While CMS has widely published that hospices, nursing homes and other providers are receiving 

just a 1% increase in Medicare reimbursement (depending upon the level of care, hospices are 

actually getting 1.06% to 1.23%).  Thanks to the complicated formula for which hospice rates are 

calculated nationally based upon the Core Based Statistical Area (CBSA) of individual metropolitan 

areas of the United States and their corresponding hospital wage index, CHC will be receiving one 

of the largest year-over-year increases in Medicare hospice reimbursement in recent memory.  

Hospices are paid based upon rates in the location of the patient’s address.  The charts below show 

the actual rates per day for each level of care by county, the dollar increase per day, and the 

percentage increase per day for our three CBSA counties and the Indiana Rural rate for all other 

counties.  These are the post Congressional Sequester rates.  CMS does not take the sequester into 

account when they publicize Medicare provider rates.  We continue to bill the pre-sequester rates 

because we are supposed to and then receive a payment that is 2% less than what we billed.  Again, 

our increases are simply due to the CBSA wage index multiplier going up.  Next year it could go 

down by more than this year’s increase.   

 

Even though the overall “pool” of funds is revenue neutral, there are wide variations across the 

country from much higher than the national rate to much lower.  CHC has always generally been 

below the national rates.  I should also mention that all hospices in our service area are paid 

identical rates regardless of their tax status.  For profits are paid the same as nonprofits.  Since the 

new two-tiered payment system was enacted, it is interesting the way CMS has simply averaged out 

the difference between the first 60 days of Routine home care and the next lower 61 plus days of 

Routine home care to calculate the Inpatient Respite rate.  Inpatient Respite takes place in Hospice 

House for up to five consecutive days to give caregivers a break.  It is a very expensive level of care 

PAGE - 25

http://www.federalregister.gov/inspection.aspx


08/16/17 President’s Report – page 14 

  

to provide.  Previously, it was just a couple dollars a day more than the Routine Home Care rate.  

Now, if a patient requires Respite Days within their first 60 days, we take about an $18.00 per day 

hit.  Naturally, none of this makes any rational sense to any reasonable person.  

 

 

 

 
 

 

WHAT MAKES CHC DIFFERENT?  TALKING POINTS 

 

At the last board meeting it was discussed that the board would like talking points regarding what 

makes CHC different.  What are the differentiators that CHC enjoys over those of other competing 

hospice programs.  The next issue of the “H&P” our physician and referral newsletter will contain 

an article called, “What’s the CHC Difference?  Ten Things You Should Know.”  The newsletter 

will go to the printer very soon, but until then I have included the article as an attachment to this 

report. 

 

Description Wage Non-Wage Nat'l Rate St Joseph Elkhart LaPorte  IN - Rural

Routine 1-60 Days (651) 132.47             60.33               192.80             183.30             179.87             184.96             165.15            
Routine 61+ Days (651) 104.03             47.38               151.41             143.95             141.26             145.26             129.70            
Svc Intensity Add On (Hourly) 27.95               12.73               40.68               38.68               37.96               39.03               34.85              
Continuous Care (652) 670.90             305.52             976.42             928.29             910.93             936.71             836.37            
Respite (655) 93.53               79.25               172.78             165.33             162.91             166.51             152.52            
Inpatient (656) 475.95             267.60             743.55             708.39             696.07             714.36             643.18            

CBSA Code 43780 21140 33140 15

CBSA Wage Index 0.9565 0.9301 0.9693 0.8167

Center for Hospice Care
FINAL --- Hospice Payment Rates (Post Sequester) --- FINAL

Effective October 1, 2017 - September 30, 2018

Description Wage Non-Wage Nat'l Rate St Joseph Elkhart LaPorte  IN - Rural

Routine 1-60 Days (651) 1.54                 0.71                 2.25                 6.31                 2.94                 4.47                 0.26                
Routine 61+ Days (651) 1.09                 0.50                 1.59                 4.79                 2.14                 3.34                 0.05                
Svc Intensity Add On (Hourly) 0.34                 0.15                 0.49                 1.35                 0.64                 0.96                 0.07                
Continuous Care (652) 8.10                 3.69                 11.79               32.32               15.22               23.00               1.65                
Respite (655) 0.98                 0.83                 1.81                 4.68                 2.29                 3.37                 0.42                
Inpatient (656) 5.51                 3.10                 8.61                 23.18               11.05               16.57               1.45                

CBSA Code 43780 21140 33140 15

CBSA Wage Index 0.0325 0.0065 0.0180 -0.013

Center for Hospice Care
Hospice Payment Rates (Post Sequester)

DIFFERENCE

Description Wage Non-Wage Nat'l Rate St Joseph Elkhart LaPorte  IN - Rural

Routine 1-60 Days (651) 1.18% 1.19% 1.18% 3.57% 1.66% 2.48% 0.16%
Routine 61+ Days (651) 1.06% 1.07% 1.06% 3.44% 1.54% 2.36% 0.04%
Svc Intensity Add On (Hourly) 1.25% 1.19% 1.23% 3.61% 1.71% 2.52% 0.20%
Continuous Care (652) 1.22% 1.22% 1.22% 3.61% 1.70% 2.52% 0.20%
Respite (655) 1.05% 1.06% 1.06% 2.91% 1.43% 2.07% 0.27%
Inpatient (656) 1.17% 1.17% 1.17% 3.38% 1.61% 2.37% 0.23%

CBSA Code 43780 21140 33140 15

CBSA Wage Index 3.52% 0.70% 1.89% -1.57%

Center for Hospice Care
Hospice Payment Rates (Post Sequester)

PERCENTAGE DIFFERENCE

PAGE - 26



08/16/17 President’s Report – page 15 

  

OUT AND ABOUT 

 

Craig Harrell and Char Yutzy, RN attended The Hospice Action Network’s Advocacy Intensive in 

Washington, D.C. July 17-18. 

 

As chair, I attended the Indiana Hospice and Palliative Care Organization Board of Directors 

meeting in Indianapolis on August 3
rd

.   

 

 

ATTACHMENTS TO THIS PRESIDENT’S REPORT IMMEDIATELY FOLLOWING 

THIS SECTION OF THE .PDF 

 

Dave Haley’s Census Charts. 

 

Advertisement from the South Bend Tribune insert “Race Play Michiana” regarding the Bike 

Michiana for Hospice 

 

“Footnotes” from IUSB Chancellor Terry Allison regarding the Chair of Palliative Care that CHC 

will be involved with, as well as mention of Dean of the Ernestine M. Raclin School of the Arts 

Marvin Curtis winning the 2016 Prestige Film Bronze Award for his original composition “A Song 

of Hope” that was featured in the HF’s award-winning documentary “Road to Hope.” 

 

Text from ABC57 TV news regarding “Mishawaka Riverwalk expansion on the way” 

 

Most popular CHC Facebook posts from June and July. 

 

Press Release for 2017 Walk for Hospice. 

 

Upcoming “H&P” physician and referral newsletter article, “What’s the CHC Difference?  Ten 

Things You Should Know” 

 

 

HARD COPY BOARD ITEMS TO BE DISTRIBUTED AT THE MEETING 

 

June and July 2017 Financials 

 

 

NEXT REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

 

Our next regular Board Meeting will be Wednesday, October 18th at 7:30 AM in Conference 

Room A, first floor at the Mishawaka Campus, 501 Comfort Place, Mishawaka, IN  46545.  In the 

meantime, if you have any questions, concerns, suggestions or comments, please contact me 

directly at 574-243-3117 or email mmurray@cfhcare.org . 

 

# # # 

PAGE - 27

mailto:mmurray@cfhcare.org


PAGE - 28



PAGE - 29



PAGE - 30



PAGE - 31



PAGE - 32



PAGE - 33



PAGE - 34



PAGE - 35



PAGE - 36



PAGE - 37



PAGE - 38



PAGE - 39



PAGE - 40



PAGE - 41



PAGE - 42



PAGE - 43



PAGE - 44



PAGE - 45



PAGE - 46



PAGE - 47



PAGE - 48



PAGE - 49



PAGE - 50



PAGE - 51



PAGE - 52



PAGE - 53



PAGE - 54



PAGE - 55



PAGE - 56



 

 

 

 

CHAPTER 

FOUR 

 

POLICIES 

PAGE - 57



PAGE - 58



PAGE - 59



PAGE - 60



PAGE - 61



PAGE - 62



PAGE - 63



PAGE - 64



PAGE - 65



PAGE - 66



PAGE - 67




